
       

 

 

 

1



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2



   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



   

 

4



   

5



 

 

6



O:\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Minutes of Meetings\2017-18\2018 05 08 BoD Minutes.docx 

 

7



 

 

 

8



 

 

 

 

9



 

 

 

 

 

10



 

11



 

12



 

13



 

14



O:\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2018-19 Agendas\2018 09 11\2018-19 Board of Directors' Professional Affiliations.doc 

 

15



Cabrillo College Foundation Board
2018-19 Terms of Office

Effective July 1, 2018        

Name                          College Representative/
Community Director

Current Term Current Term 
Expires June 30

Final Term 
Expires June 30

Matt Wetstein President Representative N/A N/A
Sue Gochis Vice President Representative N/A N/A
Victoria Lewis Vice President Representative N/A N/A
Kathleen Welch Vice President Representative N/A N/A
Rob Allen Community Director initial 2019 2025
Alan Aman Community Director 1st 2019 2022
Claire Biancalana Community Director 1st 2018 2021
Owen Brown Community Director 1st 2018 2021
Enrique Buelna Faculty 2nd 2021 N/A
Linda Burroughs Community Director 1st 2018 2021
Ceil Cirillo Community Director 1st 2019 2022
Linda Downing Community Director 2nd 2020 2020
David Heald Community Director 1st 2018 2021
Leola Lapides Community Director 2nd 2019 2019
Kelly Nesheim Community Director 1st 2019 2022
Amy Newell Community Director 1st 2021 2024
William Ow Community Director 2nd 2019 2019
June Padilla Ponce Community Director 1st 2018 2021
Patty Quillin Community Director 1st 2020 2023
Gary Reece Trustee 3rd 2019 N/A
Maria Esther Rodriguez Community Director 1st 2020 2023
Gun Ruder Community Director 1st 2020 2023
Karen Semingson Community Director initial 2019 2025
Rachael Spencer Trustee 2nd 2021 N/A
Kate Terrell Community Director 1st 2021 2024
Rachel Wedeen Community Director initial 2019 2025
Donna Ziel Trustee 1st 2020 N/A

Board nominates and approves all members. Initial appointments are one-year term.  Subsequent appointments 
are three-year terms.  Community Directors may serve a maximum of seven years.  Past Presidents serve 
additional bonus year beyond regular term limit. All appointments end June 30, of expiration year.

Eight (8) of the Directors shall be representatives of Cabrillo College, at least one (1) of whom shall be a full-time 

(3) College Trustees will be selected to serve on the Foundation Board.

Cabrillo College Representatives shall hold office for three (3) years, except in the event of an earlier termination 
of any such Director's status as a representative of the College. In that event, such a Director's term of office shall 
end at the same time as that Director ceases to be a College representative. There is no limit on the number of 
consecutive three-year terms a Director who is a representative of Cabrillo College may serve.

16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



 

 

  

   

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

18



 

 

19



20



23%
Faculty/Department

$542,032 

32%
Student Services

$753,264 

45%
Scholarships
$1,064,629 

21



8%

12%

24%

21%

21%

4%

2%

8%

2017-18 Faculty and Department Support
$542,032

Allied Health $40,790

Visual, Applied, and Performing Arts $67,591

Athletics $130,309

Human Arts & Social Sciences $111,775

Faculty Grants $114,326

Natural & Applied Sciences $23,471

Mutiple Programs $1,273

Facilities $42,497

1% 5%

37%

7%6%

7%

32%

5%

2017-18 Student Support Services
$753,237

Honors Transfer Program and Veterans $7,149

Multiple Funds $39,315

Academy for College Excellence $278,393

Foster Youth $53,600

Tutoring $47,576

Cabrillo Advancement Program $55,315

Guided Pathways $239,568

Internships $37,320

22



 

 

23



 

 24



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



O:\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2018-19 Agendas\2018 09 11\CCF Financial 

Report Narrative for Finance Comm 6.18.doc 

 

 

 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



 

38



39



 

40



Bylaws of the
Cabrillo College Foundation, Inc.
September 15, 2015As Amended

1. NAME. 
The name of this corporation is THE CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION.

2. OFFICES. 
The principal office for the transaction of the activities and affairs of this 

corporation is located at 6500 Soquel Drive, Aptos, in Santa Cruz County, 
California 95003.

3. PURPOSES. 
This corporation is a non-profit public benefit corporation and is not organized 

for the private gain of any person. It is organized pursuant to the 
California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation Law, Education Code 
sections 72670-72682 and the relevant provisions of Title 5 of the 
California Administrative Code.

A. The corporation is formed exclusively to benefit and support the Cabrillo 
Community College District, including:
(1) to solicit and raise money for the purpose of awarding scholarships 

and loans to assist students to pursue education at Cabrillo 
College, which scholarships and loans shall be awarded in 
accordance with these bylaws, and the rules and procedures 
adopted by the Board of Directors of this corporation;

(2) to afford and encourage opportunities for the establishment of 
permanent collections, endowments, research and educational 
projects, special educational and community service programs, 
improvement of faculty teaching, and the provision of facilities and 
equipment for Cabrillo College;

(3) and to otherwise provide aid, supplementary to Federal, State and 
local tax means, for the support and benefit of the Cabrillo 
Community College District.

B. This corporation is organized exclusively for public and educational 
purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. Notwithstanding any other provision of these bylaws or the Articles 
of Incorporation, this corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial 
degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in 
furtherance of the stated purposes of this corporation, nor will this 
corporation carry on any other activities not permitted 
(1) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 

501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or 
(2) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under 

Section 170(b)(l)(a)(vi) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
4. THE FOUNDATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

A. Number. The Board of Directors shall consist of at least twenty-five (25 ) 
but no more than thirty-two (32) Directors unless changed by amendment 
to these bylaws.

B. Qualifications of Directors.

41



O:\Foundation\Governance\Bylaws\2018 Revisions\CCF Bylaws Board with 
revisions from lawyer.doc

(1) Eight (8) of the Directors shall be representatives of Cabrillo 
College, at least one (1) of whom shall be a full-time faculty 
member of Cabrillo College. The College’s 
Superintendent/President, three (3) Vice Presidents, and three (3) 
College Trustees will be selected to serve on the Foundation 
Board. The College representatives shall be selected by the 
Foundation's Board of Directors from a slate submitted by the 
Nominating Committee.

(2) The remaining Directors will be community representatives 
selected by the Board of Directors from a slate submitted by the 
Nominating Committee.

C. Election and Term of Office.
(1) Approximately one-third (1/3) of the community Directors shall be 

elected at the regularly-scheduled May meeting to hold office for 
three (3) years, except that a Director who has never before 
served on the Board of Directors shall serve an initial term of one 
(1) year (or until June 30 the next year) rather than a full term of 
three (3) years. Each Director's three-year term shall commence 
July 1 after elected at the May meeting and shall expire June 30 
three years thereafter; each new Director's one-year term shall 
commence July 1 after elected at the May meeting and shall 
expire June 30 one year thereafter. No community Director shall 
hold office for more than two (2) consecutive full three-year terms 
in addition to his or her initial one-year term as a new Director with 
the sole exception of the President of the Board who shall serve an 
additional one-year term to serve as Past President.

(2) The Directors who are representatives of Cabrillo College shall 
hold office for three (3) years, except in the event of an earlier 
termination of any such Director's status as a representative of the 
College. In that event, such a Director's term of office shall end at 
the same time as that Director ceases to be a College 
representative. There is no limit on the number of consecutive 
three-year terms a Director who is a representative of Cabrillo 
College may serve.

(3) The Secretary shall keep a record of the appropriate term for each 
Director, and any vacancies shall be filled to hold office only until 
the expiration of the term for which the Director was originally 
appointed or elected or until the election of a qualified successor. 
The Board may from time to time establish a shorter term for a 
vacancy as appropriate to maintain approximately one-third (l/3) of 
the Directors' terms expiring each year.

(4) Any Director may be removed, with or without cause, by the vote 
of a majority of the Board, subject to the approval of the 
Superintendent/President.

D. Vacancies on the Board. Vacancies on the Board may be filled by action 
of the President of the Foundation Board, in consultation with a majority of 
the Directors then in office, and subject to the prior approval of the 
Superintendent/President of the District. No reduction of the authorized 
number Directors shall have the effect of removing any Director before 
that Director's term of office expires. 

42



O:\Foundation\Governance\Bylaws\2018 Revisions\CCF Bylaws Board with 
revisions from lawyer.doc

5. MEETINGS OF THE FOUNDATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS.
A. All meetings Meetings of the Foundation Board shall be conducted in 

compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. Committees of the Board, 
except ad hoc committees, shall also comply with the Ralph M. Brown 
Act.

B. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Board shall be held on the campus of 
Cabrillo College, or elsewhere within the territory of the District subject to 
exceptions permitted by the Ralph M. Brown Act.

C.Meetings by Teleconference. Individual Directors may participate in a 
Board meeting in accordance with the teleconference rules set forth in the 
Ralph M. Brown Act and applicable Board policy.

D. Annual Meeting. The Board shall hold its annual meeting on the second 
Tuesday of September of each year.

E. Other Regular Meetings. Other regular meetings of the Board shall be 
held on the second Tuesday of November, February, and May of each 
year.

F. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called at any 
time by the President, Vice President, Secretary, or any two Directors 
consistent with the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act

G. Quorum. A majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business, except to adjourn. Adjournment shall be in 
accordance with Government Code section 54955.

6. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 
The officers of the corporation shall be the President, Secretary, Chief 
Financial Officer, and the Past President. The corporation may also have, at 
the Board's discretion, one or more Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant 
Secretaries, and one or more Assistant Financial Officers. Any number of 
offices may be held by the same person, in the discretion of the Board.
A. Election. The officers of the corporation shall be chosen annually by the 

Board and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. Each officer shall 
have the title, have the authority, and perform the duties specified in these 
bylaws or as otherwise determined by the Board. The term of office shall 
commence at the close of the regular meeting next preceding the annual 
meeting and shall last for one (1) year or until a successor is approved.

B. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, 
removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled by action of the 
Board.

C. Responsibilities of Officers.
(1) President. Subject to the control of the Board, the President shall 

be the general manager of the corporation and shall supervise, 
direct and control the corporation's activities, affairs, and officers. 
The President shall preside at all Board meetings and shall have 
such other powers and duties as the Board or bylaws may 
prescribe.

(2) Vice President. In the absence or disability of the President, the 
Vice President shall perform all duties of the President. When so 
acting, a Vice President shall have all the powers of and be subject 
to all restrictions on the President. The Vice President shall have 

43



O:\Foundation\Governance\Bylaws\2018 Revisions\CCF Bylaws Board with 
revisions from lawyer.doc

such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or 
the bylaws may prescribe.

(3) Secretary. The Secretary shall cause to be kept at the 
corporation's principal office a minute book of all meetings and 
actions of the Board and Board committees. The minutes of 
meetings shall include the time and place of the meeting, whether 
regular or special, and if special how authorized, the notice given 
and the names of those present. The Secretary shall cause to be 
kept at the principal office a copy of the Articles of Incorporation 
and bylaws, as amended to date. The Secretary shall cause to be 
given notice of all meetings required by these bylaws to be given, 
and shall keep the corporate seal and have such other powers and 
perform such other duties as the Board or bylaws may prescribe. 
The President of Cabrillo College will serve as an Assistant 
Secretary.

(4) Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer shall cause to 
be kept and maintained adequate and correct books and accounts 
of the corporation's properties and transactions. The Chief 
Financial Officer shall cause to be given to the Directors such 
financial statements and reports as required by law, by these 
bylaws, or as directed by the Board. The books of account shall be 
open to inspection by any Director at all reasonable times. The 
Chief Financial Officer shall cause to be deposited all money and 
other valuables in the name and to the credit of the corporation 
with such depositories as the Board may designate, shall disburse 
the corporation's funds as the Board may direct, and shall have 
such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or 
the bylaws may prescribe. The Vice President of Business 
Services for Cabrillo College will serve as a Financial Officer. If 
required by the Board, the Chief Financial Officer (and/or any 
assistant financial officers or employees maintaining financial 
records) shall give the corporation a bond in the amount and with 
the surety or sureties specified by the Board for faithful 
performance.

(5) Past President. The immediately preceding President will serve as 
Past President, if available. If not available, this office will remain 
vacant. The Past President will be an advisor to the other officers, 
the Executive Committee, and the Board of Directors at large, 
taking on such other specific duties as the President shall 
prescribe from time to time.

D. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, this corporation 
shall indemnify its Directors, officers, employees and other persons 
described in Section 5238 of the California Corporations Code, including 
persons formerly occupying any such position, against all expenses, 
judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably 
incurred by them in connection with any proceeding as that term is used 
in that Section and including an action by or in the right of the corporation, 
by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that 
Section where such liability arose during the course and scope of said 
duties.

44



O:\Foundation\Governance\Bylaws\2018 Revisions\CCF Bylaws Board with 
revisions from lawyer.doc

7. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD.
A. Committees of the Board. The Board may create one or more 

committees, each consisting of at least two Directors to serve at the 
pleasure of the Board. The committees shall comply with the Ralph M. 
Brown Act, except for ad hoc committees.
(1) Authority of Board Committees. No committee may:

a) take any final action on any matter that also requires 
approval or ratification of the Board;

b) fill vacancies on the Board; 
c) provide for compensation of any Director;
d) amend or repeal bylaws or adopt new bylaws;
e) amend or repeal any resolution of the Board ;
f) create any other committees of the Board or appoint the 

members of
g) committees of the Board;
h) expend corporate funds without approval or ratification of 

the Board.
(2) Action of Board Committees. The Board may adopt rules for the 

governing of any committee, provided they are consistent with 
these bylaws. In the absence of rules adopted by the Board, the 
committee may adopt its own rules which are consistent with these 
by laws and applicable legal provisions.

B. Specific Board Committees.
(1) The total membership of any committee of the Board shall be less 

than a majority of the Board. A quorum of the committee shall 
consist of a majority of its members. 

(2) Executive Committee. The corporation shall have an Executive 
Committee with such power and authority as is delegated to it by 
the Board of Directors and as is authorized by law. The Executive 
Committee shall consist of the President, Vice President, 
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Past President of the 
Foundation, and the Superintendent/President of Cabrillo 
Community College District, together with no more than six (6) 
currently sitting Directors at large, to be appointed by the 
President, making a total of no less than nine and no more than 
twelve members of the Executive Committee.

(3) Finance and Investment Committee. There shall be a finance and 
investment committee composed of the Chief Financial Officer and 
at least two other Directors. This committee will report to the Board 
at each regular meeting concerning the income, expenses, and 
investments of the corporation, and will submit a budget annually 
for Board approval. Subject to the general supervision and 
ratification of the Board, the Finance and Investment Committee 
shall exercise control over the funds of the corporation, which 
funds may be invested by the Committee in such securities, banks, 
instruments, real and personal property, and other assets as the 
Committee shall determine to be prudent and appropriate from 
time to time in accordance with the Investment Policy adopted by 
the Board. The Committee shall have the authority to sell gifts 

45



O:\Foundation\Governance\Bylaws\2018 Revisions\CCF Bylaws Board with 
revisions from lawyer.doc

received by the Foundation, and may authorize the Chief Financial 
Officer or other Officer to transfer, assign, convey title, execute 
stock powers, and to buy and sell stock, and other securities and 
instruments, and in general to exercise the powers of the 
corporation with regard to its assets and investments subject to 
Board policy and ratification.

(4) There shall be an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall 
meet with the auditor prior to the audit, and review the audit after 
the audit is completed. The Audit Committee is separate from the 
Finance Committee and presents its findings directly to the 
Executive Committee and the Board. Audit Committee members 
are appointed by the Board of Directors. There shall be a 
minimum of three members. At least one member shall have a 
strong accounting background with experience preparing, 
auditing, analyzing or evaluating financial statements and an 
understanding of internal controls and procedures for financial 
reporting. Members of the Finance Committee may serve on the 
Audit Committee so long as they make up less than half of the 
committee and do not serve as the chair of the Audit Committee. 

(5) Development Committee(s). There shall be one or more 
development committees, as determined from time to time by the 
Board of Directors, charged with responsibility for soliciting gifts, 
bequests and memberships and with other forms of fundraising for 
the corporation. 

(6) Nominating Committee. A Nominating Committee consisting of at 
least three Directors shall prepare a slate of nominees for all 
officers and for an appropriate number of Directors, due regard 
being given to the number of Directors with terms that will expire 
June 30 and to the total number of Directors sought for the Board. 
Concerning nomination of those Directors who are representatives 
of Cabrillo College, the committee may solicit and consider 
suggestions for nominees from the Governing Board of the 
Cabrillo College District and from the Cabrillo Faculty Senate. In 
the event of vacancies created by the death, resignation, removal 
or disqualification of a Director who is a college representative, 
either the Nominating Committee or the Executive Committee may 
recommend new college representative nominees for election by 
the Foundation Board at its next regular or special meeting.

C. Advisory Committees. The corporation shall have such advisory 
committees as it may establish from time to time by resolution of the 
Board. Advisory committees will function for such purposes and under 
such rules as established by the Board, or in the absence thereof, such 
rules as adopted by the committee, provided in all events that they are 
consistent with these bylaws. Advisory committees shall take no action 
except as authorized by the Board. 

8. CORPORATE POWERS AND DUTIES.
A. General Corporate Powers. Subject to the provisions and limitations of 

the California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation Law, Education Code 
sections 72670-72682, Title 5 of the California Administrative Code, the 
Ralph M. Brown Act, and any other applicable laws, and subject to any 

46



O:\Foundation\Governance\Bylaws\2018 Revisions\CCF Bylaws Board with 
revisions from lawyer.doc

limitations of the Articles of Incorporation, the District’s implementing 
regulations, the master agreement between the District and the 
Foundation, and these bylaws, the corporation's activities and affairs shall 
be managed, and all corporate powers shall be exercised, by or under the 
direction of the Board. 

B. Specific Powers. Without prejudice to the general powers set forth above, 
and subject to the same limitations, the Board shall have the power to:
(1) Appoint and remove, at the pleasure of the Board, any or all of the 

corporation’s officers or agents; prescribe powers and duties for 
them that are consistent with law, with the Articles of Incorporation, 
and with these bylaws; and fix their compensation and require 
from them, if deemed appropriate, security for faithful performance 
of their duties.

(2) Adopt, amend, and repeal bylaws;
(3) Purchase and maintain insurance to the full extent permitted by 

law on behalf of its officers, Directors, employees, and other 
agents, insuring against any liability asserted against or incurred 
by any officer, Director, employee, or agent in such capacity or 
arising out of such person's association with the corporation.

(4) To have the other powers set forth in Corporations Code Section 
5140.

C. Budget and Related Issues. The Board of Directors shall approve all 
Foundation expenditures and fund appropriations. The Board shall 
cause to be prepared an annual budget which shall be reviewed and 
approved by the Board and the President/Superintendent. The Board 
shall adopt a written policy that specifies the procedures for accepting 
gifts, donations, bequests, trusts and specially funded grants.

D. Annual Audit. The Board of Directors shall select a certified public 
accountant who shall be provided with the applicable auditing and 
reporting procedures of the Foundation. The accountant shall have 
experience appropriate to the responsibility and shall have no financial 
interest in any contract or other transaction entered into by the Board of 
Directors. The accountant does not need to be a member of the Board 
of Directors. The accountant shall conduct an annual audit of any and 
all Foundation funds and shall submit such audit to the Board, the 
Board of Trustees of the College District, and to the Board of 
Governors. The audited financial statements shall be available upon 
request and shall be distributed to the District’s Board of Trustees at the 
first regularly scheduled meeting following acceptance of the audit 
report by the Board of Directors of the Foundation.

E. An attorney admitted to practice in California shall be selected to 

provide advice and counsel to the Board of Directors. The attorney shall 

have experience appropriate to the responsibility and shall have no 

financial interest in any contract or other transaction entered into by the 

Board of Directors which he/she serves. The attorney does not need to 

be a member of the Board of Directors.

9. RECORDS AND REPORTS.

47



O:\Foundation\Governance\Bylaws\2018 Revisions\CCF Bylaws Board with 
revisions from lawyer.doc

A. Corporate Records. The corporation shall keep:
(1) adequate and correct books and records of account;
(2) written minutes of the proceedings of its Board and committees of 

the Board; and 
(3) a record of each Director's name, address, telephone number, and 

term of office.
B. Inspection. On written demand, at any reasonable time, any Director may 

inspect, copy, and make extracts from the accounting books and records 
and the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors, and Board 
committees. This right of inspection extends to the records of any 
advisory committee to the corporation.

C. Annual Report. The Board shall cause an annual report to be sent to all 
Directors and to the Superintendent/President by November 15 of each 
year. That report shall contain the following information, in appropriate 
detail, for the fiscal year:
(1) All financial statements required to be filed with the California 

Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office
(2) A comparison of budgeted and actual expenditures
(3) A description of major accomplishments of the organization
(4) A description of improvements proposed for operation of the 

organization.
(5) There shall be available for examination in the corporation's 

business office any reports and the annual report of independent 
accountants.

D. Audit. The accounts of the Chief Financial Officer and the annual report 
shall be audited by a certified public accountant appointed by the 
Directors at the end of each fiscal year, and at such other times as are 
deemed by the Directors to be appropriate.

10.PROHIBITED TRANSACTIONS.
No Director shall be financially interested in any contract or other transaction entered 
into by 

the Board of which he or she is a member subject to the provisions of 
Education Code Sections 72677-72679. No Director shall utilize any 
information, not a matter of public record, which is received by reason of 
his or her membership on the Board for personal pecuniary gain in 
accordance with Education Code section 72680.

11.CODE OF CONDUCT.

No Director shall act, either by motion, second, deliberation or vote, or 
have influence in any way on any matter brought before the Foundation 
through its committees or to the Board of Directors, or otherwise, when 
such matter will, or might, result in a direct or indirect personal or 
financial gain to such Director. No member of the Foundation’s Board of 
Directors shall be financially interested in any contract or other 
transaction entered into by the Foundation except as permitted by law. 
No Director shall utilize any information, not a matter of public record, 
which is received by the person by reason of his or her membership on 

48



the Board, for personal pecuniary gain, regardless of when the gain is 
realized.

12.RESTRICTIONS ON LOANS AND OTHER TRANSACTIONS. 
A. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Foundation and no 

negotiable paper shall be issued in its name, unless and except as 
authorized by the Board of Directors. When so authorized by the Board 
of Directors, any officer or agent of the Foundation may effect loans and 
advances at any time for the Foundation from any bank, trust company, 
or other institution, or from any firm, corporation or individual, and for 
such loans and advances may make, execute and deliver promissory 
notes, bonds or other evidences of indebtedness of the Foundation and 
when authorized as aforesaid, as security for the payment of any and 
all loans, advances, indebtedness and liabilities of the Foundation, may 
pledge, hypothecate or transfer any and all stocks, securities and other 
personal property at any time held by the Foundation and to that end 
endorse, assign, and deliver the same.

B. The Foundation shall not enter into any transaction concerning real 
property without the prior written approval of the 
Superintendent/President, following his/her notification to the District 
Board of Trustees.

13.MISCELLANEOUS.
A. Construction and Definitions. Unless the context requires otherwise, the 

general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions of the applicable 
statutes shall govern the construction of these bylaws. Without limiting the 
generality of the preceding sentence, the masculine gender includes the 
feminine and neuter, the singular includes the plural, the plural includes 
the singular, and the term "person" includes both a legal entity and a 
natural person.

B. Compensation. No Director shall be compensated for his or her services 
as a Director of the corporation. 

C. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day 
of July and end on the last day of June of each year.

D. References to Public Laws. Any references to specific sections of any 
public law shall be deemed to refer to the appropriate corresponding 
provision of any future amendment, re-enactment, or successor laws, as 
required to carry out the intent of the original provision.

E.  Interpretation. These bylaws shall be interpreted as necessary to 
maintain the corporation's tax exempt status.

14.AMENDMENTS. 
New bylaws may be adopted, or these bylaws may be amended or repealed by a 

majority of the Directors then in office, provided a quorum is present. No 
amendment may extend the term of a Director beyond that for which the Director 
was elected with the sole exception of the President who has served two three-year 
terms and is extended a one year term to serve as Past President. These Bylaws is 
agreement will be reviewed every three years and brought to the Board of Directors 
for approval.

Approved by the CCF Board of Directors on September 15, 2015.

49

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text
Approved, as amended, by the CCF Board of Directors on[DATE]

lohood
Typewritten Text

lohood
Typewritten Text



��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
��������	�
�����������
��	�
�����������
���
����	�����������	������������ ���!��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
�����"#�$���%&'(���(''�')&��	�
�����������
����"� ���!������$

*+,-./�+0/..*.1-23�+14�2.-5..1�-6.7+2/899:�7:**;18-3�7:99.0.�48,-/87-+14�-6.�7+2/899:�7:99.0.�<:;14+-8:1+=�+>?@A?AB77<�2CDEA�CF�4GE?HICE=�DJJECK?A�,?JI?>L?E�MNO�PQMN77�2CDEA�CF�-ER=I??�DJJECK?A�4?H?>L?E�SO�PQMNTUVW�XYZ[[\[]̂�VW�\X_[�X]_�[]̂[Z[_�V]̂̀ �̂UVW�aaaa�_Xb�̀c�aaa�db�X]_�d[̂e[[]�̂U[�fXdZVgg̀�f̀ \\h]V̂b�f̀ gg[Y[�iVŴZVĵ�kliVŴZVĵlm�X]_�̂U[�fXdZVgg̀�f̀ gg[Y[�ǹh]_X̂V̀]�k�lǹh]_X̂V̀]lmo�X]�XhpVgVXZb�̀ZYX]VqX̂V̀]�̀c�̂U[�iVŴZVĵ�[ŴXdgVWU[_�V]�Xjj̀Z_X]j[�eV̂U�r_hjX̂V̀]�f̀ _[�W[ĵV̀]�stusv�[̂�W[wx 8y;/y:,.TU[�X_\V]VŴZX̂V̀]�db�̂U[�ǹh]_X̂V̀]�̀c�̂U[�ch]ĵV̀]W�X]_�XĵVzV̂V[W�_[WjZVd[_�U[Z[V]o�V]Ŵ[X_�̀c�X_\V]VŴZX̂V̀]�db�X]_�̂UZ̀hYU�̂U[�iVŴZVĵo�VW�_[[\[_�̂ �̀d[�\̀ Z[�[cc[ĵVz[�V]�Xjj̀\{gVWUV]Y�̂ÙW[�ch]ĵV̀]W�X]_�XĵVzV̂V[W�̂UX]�è hg_�d[�{̀WWVdg[�h]_[Z�̂U[�hWhXg�Ỳz[Z]\[]̂Xg�dh_Y[̂XZbo�{hZjUXWV]Yo�X]_�̀̂U[Z�cVWjXg�{Z̀j[_hZ[Wx�88+/.+,�:<�,./|87.f̀ ]WVŴ[]̂�eV̂U�V̂W�}ẐVjg[W�̀c�~]j̀Z{̀ZX̂V̀]o�̂U[�ǹh]_X̂V̀]�\Xb�X_\V]VŴ[Z�̂ÙW[�ch]ĵV̀]W�̀Z�XĵVzV̂V[W�_[cV][_�V]�W[ĵV̀]���t���̀c�TV̂g[��o�fXgVc̀Z]VX�f̀ _[�̀c��[YhgX̂V̀]Wo�X]_�iVŴZVĵ��̀XZ_��̀gVjb�eUVjU�XZ[�\ĥhXggb�XYZ[[_�h{̀]�db�̂U[�{XẐV[Wx�88898*8-+-8:1�:<�+;-6:/8-3�+14�/.,y:1,82898-3:<�+;�898+/3�:/0+18�+-8:1,�-GI�?�NO�7D�GFCE@GD�7CA?�CF�/?�R�DIGC@=O�,?HIGC@�N�PNS���������TU[�ǹh]_X̂V̀]�WUXgg�]̀ �̂̀cc[Z�j̀hZW[W�c̀Z�eUVjU��̂X̂[�ch]_V]Y�VW�Z[j[Vz[_x}gg�W[ZzVj[Wo�{Z̀YZX\W�X]_�XĵVzV̂V[W�̂UX̂�\Xb�d[�h]_[ẐX�[]�db�̂U[�ǹh]_X̂V̀]�WUXgg�d[�V\{g[\[]̂[_�c̀Z�̂U[�Y[][ZXg�d[][cV̂�̀c�̂U[�[_hjX̂V̀]Xg�{Z̀YZX\W�̀c�̂U[�iVŴZVĵx��{̀]�\ĥhXg�XYZ[[\[]̂�̀c�̂U[�{XẐV[Wo�̂U[�ǹh]_X̂V̀]�\Xb�XWWh\[�W[ZzVj[W�X]_�{Z̀YZX\W�V]�̀Z_[Z��xT̀�{Z̀zV_[�̂U[�cVWjXg�\[X]W�X]_�̂U[�\X]XY[\[]̂�{Z̀j[_hZ[W�̂UX̂�Xgg̀e�̂U[�iVŴZVĵ�^̀�jXZZb�̀]�[_hjX̂V̀]Xggb�Z[gX̂[_�XĵVzV̂V[W�]̀ �̂]̀Z\Xggb�ch]_[_�db�̂U[��̂X̂[�txT̀�[gV\V]X̂[�̂U[�h]_h[�_VccVjhĝb�̂UX̂�è hg_�̀̂U[ZeVW[�XZVW[�h]_[Z�̂U[�hWhXg�Ỳz[Z]\[]̂Xg�dh_Y[̂XZbo�{hZjUXWV]Yo�X]_�̀̂U[Z�cVWjXg�j̀]̂Z̀gW���xT̀�{Z̀zV_[�cVWjXg�{Z̀j[_hZ[W�X]_�\X]XY[\[]̂�WbŴ[\W�̂UX̂�Xgg̀e�[cc[ĵVz[�j̀ Z̀_V]X̂V̀]�̀c�ǹh]_X̂V̀]�XĵVzV̂V[W�eV̂U�̂U[�iVŴZVĵ�V]�Xjj̀Z_X]j[�eV̂U�Ẁh]_�dhWV][WW�{ZXĵVj[W��
50



��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
��������	�
�����������
��	�
�����������
���
����	�����������	������������ ���!��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
�����"#�$���%&'(���(''�')&��	�
�����������
����"� ���!������$

*+�,-�./0/123�14-5�36/�/78/42/09/�:0;�/78/432</�-1�=->0;:32-0+?213<�3-�36/�=->0;:32-0�<6:@@�./�:99/83/;�:<�:>36-42A/;�.B�36/�C2<34293D<�258@/5/0320E�4/E>@:32-0<�:0;�36/�8-@292/<�-1�36/�=->0;:32-0+F0�0-�9:</�<6:@@�<96-@:4<628G�<328/0;G�-4�E4:03<H20H:2;�:I:4;/;�3-�84/</03�-4�1-45/4�<3>;/03<�/79//;�36/�:5->03�0/9/<<:4B�3-�9-J/4�.--K<G�<96--@�1//<G�:0;�@2J20E�/78/0</<+�L�4/9-4;�-1�<>96�120:092:@�:<<2<3:09/�<6:@@�./�1-4I:4;/;�-0�:�325/@B�.:<2<�3-�36/�9:58><�120:092:@�:2;�-1129/�:0;�<6:@@�./�;-9>5/03/;�-0�<3>;/03�120:092:@�:2;�4/9282/03�4/9-4;<�K/83�20�36:3�-1129/+�L@@�<>96�120:092:@�:<<2<3:09/�84-J2;/;�14-5�<3>;/03�-4E:02A:32-0�1>0;<�<6:@@�./�:884-J/;�.B�36/�9:58><�120:092:@�:2;�-1129/�./1-4/�<>96�1>0;<�:4/�/78/0;/;G�:0;�<6:@@�0-3�/79//;�:5->03<�3-�./�84-J2;/;�>0;/4�4/E>@:32-0<�-1�1/;/4:@�:0;�<3:3/�120:092:@�:2;�84-E4:5<+MNOPQ�RS�STUMVMWMQP,6/�=->0;:32-0�5:B�-99>8BG�-8/4:3/G�:0;�></�C2<34293�1:92@232/<�:0;�84-8/43B�</8:4:3/@B�-4�X-203@B�I236�36/�C2<34293�:<�2;/03212/;�20�I42320E�.B�36/�8:432/<+F0�9-0<2;/4:32-0�-1�36/�1>436/4�3/45<�-1�362<�:E4//5/03G�36/�C2<34293�<6:@@�84-J2;/�36/�=->0;:32-0�I236�:;/Y>:3/�<8:9/�:0;�/Y>285/03�3-�8/41-45�23<�:932J232/<+�,6/4/�<6:@@�./�0-�96:4E/�3-�36/�=->0;:32-0�1-4�<>96�<8:9/�:0;�/Y>285/03+�,6/�E-J/4020E�.-:4;�-1�36/�C2<34293�6:<�;/3/4520/;�36:3�36/�J:@>/�-1�1>0;4:2<20EG�9-55>023B�:0;�;-0-4�4/@:32-0<G�E213�:0;�84-E4:5�:;5202<34:32-0�:0;�-36/4�</4J29/<G�:884-725:3/@B�3I-�3-�364//�52@@2-0�;-@@:4<�:00>:@@B�84-J2;/;�.B�36/�=->0;:32-0G�E4/:3@B�/79//;<�36/�Z[\G]̂[�4/03:@�9-<3�3-�36/�C2<34293�-1�36/�84-J2<2-0�-1�:0B�1:92@232/<+,6/�=->0;:32-0�<6:@@�></�36/�1:92@232/<�:0;�84-8/43B�-0@B�1-4�36-</�</4J29/<�:0;�1>0932-0<�36:3�:4/�9-0<2<3/03�I236�36/�8-@292/<G�4>@/<G�:0;�4/E>@:32-0<�I6296�6:J/�.//0�-4�5:B�./�:;-83/;�.B�36/�_-:4;�-1�,4><3//<�-1�36/�̀:.42@@-�̀-55>023B�̀-@@/E/�C2<34293+,6/�42E63�3-�></�:0B�-1�36/�C2<34293�1:92@232/<�-4�/Y>285/03�209@>;/;�20�362<�:E4//5/03�<6:@@�9/:</�I23620�:�4/:<-0:.@/�325/�8/42-;�1-@@-I20E�I4233/0�0-329/�.B�36/�a>8/4203/0;/03bc4/<2;/03�36:3�36/�1:92@232/<�:4/�0//;/;�1-4�36/�/79@><2J/�></�-1�36/�C2<34293+deQMfgOePQfQhW�SRe�PQeNMUQP�Thi�STUMVMWMQPj0�:0�:00>:@�.:<2<G�36/�C2<34293D<�a>8/4203/0;/03bc4/<2;/03�<6:@@�;/3/4520/G�8>4<>:03�3-�C2<34293�_-:4;�c-@292/<�:0;�c4-9/;>4/<G��I6/36/4�36/�9-<3�-1�C2<34293�/58@-B//<�-0�@-:0�-4�84-J2;20E�84-1/<<2-0:@�</4J29/<�3-�36/�=->0;:32-0�<6->@;�./�4/25.>4</;�.B�36/�=->0;:32-0+,6/�=->0;:32-0�5:B�84-J2;/�</4J29/<�3-�36/�C2<34293�1-4�I6296�36/�C2<34293�<6:@@�4/25.>4</�36/�=->0;:32-0+�a>96�</4J29/�:4/:<�<6:@@�./�2;/03212/;�20�:�I4233/0�;-9>5/03�:99/83/;�.B�36/�C2<34293+j0�:0�:00>:@�.:<2<�36/�C2<34293D<�a>8/4203/0;/03bc4/<2;/03�<6:@@�;/3/4520/�I6/36/4�36/�9-<3�-1�:0B�:99->0320E�:0;�4/9-4;�K//820E�</4J29/<�84-J2;/;�.B�36/�C2<34293�<6->@;�./�4/25.>4</;�.B�36/�=->0;:32-0+
51



��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
��������	�
�����������
��	�
�����������
���
����	�����������	������������ ���!��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
�����"#�$���%&'(���(''�')&��	�
�����������
����"� ���!�*����$

+,�-,./0/,./,1�23+�4-56�7-88�9:.-1�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�91�<=:,.91-=,�/>0/,?/@�A;/�<=:,.91-=,�69B�?/8/C1�1;/�?96/�9:.-1�4-56�1;91�9:.-1?�1;/�D-?15-C1E�=5�9�.-44/5/,1�-,./0/,./,1�23+�4-56@� FGGHIGJKLM�LNOMOP4�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�9.6-,-?1/5?�9�4/./5988BQ?0=,?=5/.�05=R596E�-1�?;988�5/-6S:5?/�1;/�D-?15-C1�4=5�-,.-5/C1�C=?1?�9??=C-91/.�7-1;�1;/�0/54=569,C/�=4�?/5T-C/?�SB�1;/�D-?15-C1�4=5�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�5/891-,R�1=�1;/�4/./5988BQ?0=,?=5/.�05=U/C1@�V:C;�5/-6S:5?/6/,1�7-88�19W/�-,1=�C=,?-./591-=,�1;/�D-?15-C1X?�4/./598�-,.-5/C1�C=?1�591/�9,.�1;/�9005=T/.�-,.-5/C1�C=?1�988=C91-=,E�-4�9,BE�=4�1;/�4/./598�05=R596�9795.@ FGGYZGHMKHZHLK�ZHI�N[KJZMGH\�K][KHOKOA;/�D-?15-C1�?;988�05=T-./�69-,1/,9,C/�9,.�C:?1=.-98�?/5T-C/?�-,�1;/�?96/�69,,/5�9?�-1�05=T-./?�4=5�-1?�=7,�=44-C/?@�A;/�R=T/5,-,R�S=95.�=4�1;/�D-?15-C1�;9?�./1/56-,/.�1;91�1;/�T98:/�=4�4:,.59-?-,RE�C=66:,-1B�9,.�.=,=5�5/891-=,?E�R-41�9,.�05=R596�9.6-,-?1591-=,�9,.�=1;/5�?/5T-C/?E�9005=>-691/8B�17=�1=�1;5//�6-88-=,�.=8895?�9,,:988B�05=T-./.�SB�1;/�<=:,.91-=,E�R5/918B�/>C//.?�1;/�C=?1�1=�1;/�D-?15-C1�=4�1;/�05=T-?-=,�=4�69-,1/,9,C/�9,.�C:?1=.-98�?/5T-C/?@�A;/�<=:,.91-=,�9R5//?�1;91�-1�7-88�W//0�9,.�69-,19-,�-1?�49C-8-1-/?�-,�9�C8/9,�9,.�=5./58B�C=,.-1-=,@FGGG[̂ _̀ GL�JK̀ ZMGNHOa-1;�5/?0/C1�1=�9,B�/>0/,.-1:5/?�4=5�0:S8-C�5/891-=,?�=5�=1;/5�0:50=?/?�7;-C;�7=:8.�?/5T/�1=�9:R6/,1�D-?15-C1�9005=05-91-=,?�4=5�1;/�=0/591-=,�=4�1;/�2=88/R/E�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�69B�/>0/,.�4:,.?�-,�?:C;�96=:,1�9,.�4=5�?:C;�0:50=?/?�9?�95/�9005=T/.�SB�1;/�b=95.�=4�D-5/C1=5?�=4�1;/�<=:,.91-=,@�A;/�<=:,.91-=,�?;988�4-8/�7-1;�1;/�2=88/R/�V:0/5-,1/,./,1c35/?-./,1�9�?191/6/,1�=4�-1?�0=8-CB�=,�9CC:6:891-=,�9,.�:?/�=4�0:S8-C�5/891-=,?�4:,.?@�A;/�?191/6/,1�7-88�-,C8:./�1;/�0=8-CB�9,.�05=C/.:5/�=,�?=8-C-191-=,�=4�4:,.?E�?=:5C/�=4�4:,.?E�0:50=?/?�4=5�7;-C;�1;/�4:,.?�7-88�S/�:?/.E�988=79S8/�/>0/,.-1:5/?�9,.�05=C/.:5/?�=4�C=,15=8@G]IGO[KHOZMGNH�Nd�KZJHGH\Oe0/591-,R�-,C=6/�R/,/591/.�SB�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�-,�/>C/??�=4�C=?1?�9,.�05=T-?-=,?�4=5�/f:-06/,1E�69-,1/,9,C/E�b=95.�./?-R,91/.�5/?/5T/?E�9,.�7=5W-,R�C90-198�?;988�S/�:?/.�SB�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�1=�S/,/4-1�1;/�D-?15-C1@�290-198�05=T-?-=,?�?;988�S/�/?19S8-?;/.�SB�1;/�b=95.�=4�D-5/C1=5?�=4�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�1=�/,?:5/�4:84-886/,1�SB�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�=4�1;-?�9R5//6/,1@]IGOMJG_̂ MGNH�Nd�ZOOKMO�̂[NH�LKOOZMGNHg0=,�C/??91-=,�=4�=0/591-=,?�=4�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�:,./5�1;-?�9R5//6/,1E�:,8/??�/>1/,./.�=5�5/,/7/.E�1;/�,/1�9??/1?�=4�1;/�<=:,.91-=,�5/?:81-,R�=5�95-?-,R�45=6�1;-?�9R5//6/,1�?;988�
52



��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
��������	�
�����������
��	�
�����������
���
����	�����������	������������ ���!��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
�����"#�$���%&'(���(''�')&��	�
�����������
����"� ���!�*����$

+,-.+/�0+�-/1234+//+5�-6�-.+�7,3-/,8-�6/�1�2629:/64,-�-1;9+;+<:-�6/=12,>1-,62�5+3,=21-+5�0?�-.+�7,3-/,8-@�6/�+;:+25+5�0?�-.+�A6B251-,62�46/�-.+�0+2+4,-�64�-.+�7,3-/,8-C�DEFGHIJKJL7B/,2=�-.+�-+/<�64�-.,3�1=/++<+2-@�-.+�A6B251-,62�1=/++3�-6�<1,2-1,2�,-3�+;,3-+28+�125�-6�6:+/1-+�,2�1886/5128+�M,-.�N+8-,623�OPQOR9OPQSP�64�-.+�T1U,46/2,1�V5B81-,62�T65+�125�M,-.�N+8-,623�WXPWR9WXPOP�64�-.+�T1U,46/2,1�T65+�64�Y+=BU1-,623@�Z,-U+�W@�13�M+UU�13�-.+�T10/,UU6�T6<<B2,-?�T6UU+=+�7,3-/,8-�[<:U+<+2-,2=�Y+=BU1-,623C�DEE\E]J\̂�_EDL̀ aI\̂�KJb�Ic̀ EdeIJL7B/,2=�-.+�-+/<�64�-.,3�1=/++<+2-@�-.+�A6B251-,62�3.1UU�.1f+�-.+�/,=.-�-6�:U18+�125�1--18.�4,;-B/+3@�3,=23@�125�+gB,:<+2-�,2�6/�B:62�418,U,-,+3�13�1B-.6/,>+5�0?�-.+�NB:+/,2-+25+2-hi/+3,5+2-�,2�M/,-,2=�13�-6�2B<0+/@�3,>+@�125�U681-,623C�A,;-B/+3@�3,=23@�6/�+gB,:<+2-�36�+/+8-+5@�:U18+5@�6/�1--18.+5�0?�-.+�A6B251-,62�3.1UU�0+�125�/+<1,2�-.+�:/6:+/-?�64�-.+�A6B251-,62�125�0+�/+<6f+5�-.+/+4/6<�0?�-.+�A6B251-,62�B:62�-+/<,21-,62�64�-.,3�1=/++<+2-C DEEEaE]jL�G_�IJLakl-�12?�/+136210U+�-,<+@�-.+�7,3-/,8-�125�,-3�1=+2-3�3.1UU�.1f+�-.+�/,=.-�-6�+2-+/�-.+�A6B251-,62�418,U,-,+3�6/�12?�:1/-�-.+/+64�46/�-.+�:B/:63+3�64�+;1<,21-,62�6/�3B:+/f,3,62CDEHLjEab�dKaLk�K]aIIeIJL\�mk�LjI�_G̀ JbKLEGJZ.+�A6B251-,62�3.1UU�26-�+2-+/�,2-6�12?�862-/18-�-.1-�M6BU5�60U,=1-+�6/�+28B<0+/�5+3,=21-+5�7,3-/,8-�418,U,-,+3@�+gB,:<+2-@�6/�:+/3622+U�M,-.6B-�:/,6/�M/,--+2�7,3-/,8-�1::/6f1UC�l2?�3B8.�862-/18-3�<B3-�862-1,2�3,;-?951?�6/�2,2+-?951?�8128+UU1-,62�:/6f,3,623�125�26�8128+UU1-,62�:+21U-,+3C DHEJ\̀ aKJFÎ�EJbIeJE_EFKLEGĴ�KJb�aI\LGaKLEGJZ.+�A6B251-,62�3.1UU�0+�,28UB5+5�,2�-.+�7,3-/,8-n3�,23B/128+�:6U,8,+3�46/�1UU�64�,-3�/+=BU1/�4B28-,623C�o.+2�3:+8,1U�+f+2-3�1/+�3:6236/+5�0?�-.+�A6B251-,62@�3+:1/1-+�,23B/128+�86f+/1=+�<1?�0+�/+gB,/+5�0?�-.+�7,3-/,8-CZ.+�A6B251-,62�1=/++3�-6�,25+<2,4?@�5+4+25@�125�31f+�.1/<U+33�-.+�7,3-/,8-@�,-3�644,8+/3@�1=+2-3@�125�+<:U6?++3�4/6<�12?�125�1UU�U633@�51<1=+@�6/�U,10,U,-?�-.1-�<1?�0+�3B44+/+5�6/�,28B//+5�0?�-.+�7,3-/,8-@�,-3�644,8+/3@�1=+2-3@�125�+<:U6?++3�81B3+5�0?@�1/,3,2=�6B-�64@�6/�,2�12?�M1?�8622+8-+5�M,-.�-.+�B3+�64�-.+�5+38/,0+5�418,U,-,+3�0?�-.+�A6B251-,62�6/�,2�8622+8-,62�M,-.�-.,3�1=/++<+2-�+;8+:-�46/�U633+3�81B3+5�0?�-.+�36U+�2+=U,=+28+�6/�/+8pU+33�6/�M,UU4BU�<,38625B8-�64�-.+�7,3-/,8-C
53



��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
��������	�
�����������
��	�
�����������
���
����	�����������	������������ ���!��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
�����"#�$���%&'(���(''�')&��	�
�����������
����"� ���!�"����$

*+,-�./012-3.2,-�,4�.526�370//1/-.8�.5/�926.02:.�653;;�53</�.5/�,+.2,-�.,�0/=>20/8�3.�.5/�?,>-@3.2,-A6�,B-�/C+/-6/�3-@�026D8�.,�0/6.,0/�.5/�43:2;2.2/6�36�-/30;E�36�+,662F;/�.,�.5/�:,-@2.2,-�/C26.2-7�+02,0�.,�.5/�/C/:>.2,-�,4�.5/�370//1/-.8�,0@2-30E�B/30�3-@�./30�/C:/+./@G�H>.�24�.5/�?,>-@3.2,-�653;;�432;�.,�@,�6,�B2.52-�-2-/.E�IJKL�@3E6�34./0�926.02:.�/C/0:26/6�632@�,+.2,-8�926.02:.�13E�0/6.,0/�.5/�+0,+/0.E�3.�.5/�026D�,4�.5/�?,>-@3.2,-�3-@�3;;�0/36,-3F;/�:,6.6�3-@�/C+/-6/6�,4�6>:5�0/1,<3;�,0�0/6.,03.2,-�653;;�F/�+32@�FE�.5/�?,>-@3.2,-�>+,-�@/13-@�,4�926.02:.G�926.02:.�653;;�53</�.5/�0275.�.,�/C/0:26/�.526�,+.2,-�B2.52-�.520.E�IMKL�@3E6�34./0�.5/�/C+203.2,-�,4�.526�370//1/-.8�F>.�-,.�.5/0/34./0GNOPQRST�UQVURQWXY5/�?,>-@3.2,-�653;;�-,.�/-./0�2-.,�3-E�.03-63:.2,-�:,-:/0-2-7�0/3;�+0,+/0.E�B2.5,>.�.5/�+02,0�B02../-�3++0,<3;�,4�.5/�Z>+/02-./-@/-.[\0/62@/-.8�4,;;,B2-7�526[5/0�-,.242:3.2,-�.,�.5/�926.02:.�H,30@�,4�Y0>6.//6G NOPP]V]̂S__P̀]SaPTPWXY526�370//1/-.�26�-,.�36627-3F;/�FE�.5/�?,>-@3.2,-8�/2.5/0�2-�B5,;/�,0�2-�+30.8�-,0�653;;�.5/�?,>-@3.2,-�+/012.�3-E,-/�/;6/�.,�>6/�.5/�@/6:02F/@�43:2;2.2/6�,0�3-E�+30.�.5/0/,4�B2.5,>.�.5/�+02,0�B02../-�+/012662,-�,4�.5/�Z>+/02-./-@/-.[\0/62@/-.GNOPPPWRQb_�Vc�S̀ QRRbR]WY526�370//1/-.�F/72-6�.5/�4206.�@3E�,4�ddddddddddG�Y526�370//1/-.�13E�F/�./012-3./@�FE�/2.5/0�+30.E�34./0�+0,<2@2-7�62C.E�IeKL�@3E6�B02../-�-,.2:/8�6>Ff/:.�.,�.5/�+0,<262,-6�,4�.5/�370//1/-.�/-.2.;/@�926.02F>.2,-�,4�g66/.6�*+,-�h/663.2,-GY5/�?,>-@3.2,-�653;;�0/132-�2-�7,,@�6.3-@2-7�B2.5�.5/�926.02:.G�i.5/0B26/8�.526�370//1/-.�13E��./012-3./8�3.�.5/�6,;/�@26:0/.2,-�,4�.5/�926.02:.8�3-@�.5/�?,>-@3.2,-�B2;;�./012-3./�3-E�:,-.03:.6�B2.5�.520@�+30.2/6�3-@�1//.�.5/�+0,<262,-6�,4�.5/�370//1/-.�/-.2.;/@�926.02F>.2,-�,4�g66/.6�*+,-�h/663.2,-GWjkl�mnoppqprs�tkuu�vp�opwkptpx�pwpoy�sjopp�ypmol�mrx�voz{njs�sz�sjp�azmox�z|�}kop~szol�|zo�m��ozwmu� NPN]VWP�R_g;;�-,.2:/6�5/0/2-�0/=>20/@�.,�F/�72</-8�,0�B52:5�13E�F/�72</-�FE�/2.5/0�+30.E�.,�.5/�,.5/08�653;;�F/�@//1/@�.,�53</�F//-�4>;;E�72</-�B5/-�13@/�2-�B02.2-7�3-@�0/:/2</@�FE�.5/�?,>-@3.2,-�,0�.5/�Z>+/02-./-@/-.[\0/62@/-.�,4�.5/�926.02:.G�����Y��ZZ������i?8�.526�370//1/-.�536�F//-�/C/:>./@�FE�.5/�+30.2/6�5/0/.,�36�,4�.5/�@3./�4206.�3F,</�B02../-G
54



��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
��������	�
�����������
��	�
�����������
���
����	�����������	������������ ���!��������	
���������	�����	�
�����������
�����"#�$���%&'(���(''�')&��	�
�����������
����"� ���!�$����$

*+,� *+,-./012�345167.8891:�;<�=18681>5� =>22>.?�@: �������������->5A.�*/004/B96C/D10>5815A158EF016>A158 F016>A158G.H0>224�G4??/5>8+�G4221B1�I>680>J8� G.H0>224�G4221B1�K4/5A.8>45I.81,� I.81,�LA4D81A,M�*4.0A�4N�O0/68116LDD04P1A,�G.H0>224�G4221B1�K4/5A.8>45�*4.0A�4N�I>01J8406�QRSTRUVSTLA4D81AM�.6�.?15A1A,LDD04P1AM�.6�.?15A1A,

55



56



To be approved by Board of Directors, 9/11/18 
 

 
Note: This Succession Plan will be reviewed every three years. The Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County 
has a detailed and comprehensive leadership succession plan that may be referred to for additional guidance. 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

57



To be approved by Board of Directors, 9/11/18 
 

 
Note: This Succession Plan will be reviewed every three years. The Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County 
has a detailed and comprehensive leadership succession plan that may be referred to for additional guidance. 
 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

 

58



To be approved by Board of Directors, 9/11/18 
 

 
Note: This Succession Plan will be reviewed every three years. The Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County 
has a detailed and comprehensive leadership succession plan that may be referred to for additional guidance. 
 

Page 3 of 3 

59



Portfolio Returns
Incept. Current Latest Fiscal Year One Three Five Eight Since Latest Fiscal Year One Three Five Eight Since 
Date Allocation Quarter YTDTo Date Year Years Years Years Incep Comparative Index Quarter YTDTo Date Year Years Years Years Incep

Name

TOTAL FUND
Parametric R3000 04/26/99 27.9% 4.07 14.93 3.29 14.93 11.46 13.17 15.06 6.46 Russell 3000 3.89 14.78 3.22 14.78 11.58 13.29 15.27 6.27
MLP 04/30/18 5.3% - - - - - - - 3.25 Alerian MLP Index 11.80 (4.57) (0.63) (4.57) (5.93) (4.09) 4.63 3.43
Breckinridge Intm Fixed 05/31/06 20.4% 0.18 (0.02) (0.75) (0.02) 1.58 2.26 2.82 4.93 Barclays Int Gov/Cr * 0.01 (0.58) (0.97) (0.58) 1.16 1.75 2.23 3.78
Putnam Short Duration 04/30/18 5.1% - - - - - - - 0.18 FTSE 1 Mo TBill 0.42 1.28 0.77 1.28 0.60 0.37 0.26 0.29
Brandes Intl 04/30/99 11.9% (2.45) 6.53 (0.06) 6.53 4.15 7.31 7.80 6.54 MSCI Net EAFE (1.24) 6.84 (2.75) 6.84 4.90 6.44 7.78 4.04
Hansberger Intl 01/31/05 4.6% (2.24) 15.33 (1.27) 15.33 8.71 9.89 9.49 7.12 MSCI ACWI x US (2.61) 7.28 (3.77) 7.28 5.07 5.99 6.74 5.40
Brandes Global MidCap 12/22/08 0.5% 0.32 (1.19) (3.52) (1.19) 8.30 9.44 12.46 16.52 MSCI SC World 3.41 15.29 2.95 15.29 10.63 12.06 13.57 15.29
Accuvest Intl 11/30/11 4.7% (5.04) 4.90 (4.63) 4.90 2.67 5.60 - 5.59 MSCI ACWI x US (2.61) 7.28 (3.77) 7.28 5.07 5.99 6.74 6.83
Intl Small Cap 10/24/16 9.6% (3.15) 6.88 (2.81) 6.88 - - - 13.24 SP Developed ExUS SC (1.15) 11.35 (2.02) 11.35 9.29 10.78 10.99 16.94
Liquid Alternatives 04/30/13 9.9% (1.13) 1.43 (1.64) 1.43 2.52 2.21 - 1.59 HFRX Global Hedge 0.17 2.47 (0.85) 2.47 0.83 1.32 1.27 1.16

TOTAL FUND 04/30/99 100.0% 0.30 8.58 0.24 8.58 7.22 8.33 9.29 6.33 Composite Benchmark 0.77 8.50 (0.18) 8.50 6.96 7.83 8.98 5.82

FIXED INCOME 20.26%

CASH & EQUIVALENTS 7.08%

INTERNATIONAL
EQUITY 29.99%

ALTERNATIVE
INVESTMENTS 9.90% EQUITY 32.78%

FIXED INCOME 20.00%

CASH & EQUIVALENTS 5.00%

INTERNATIONAL
EQUITY 32.50%

ALTERNATIVE
INVESTMENTS 10.00% EQUITY 32.50%

Source of Portfolio Growth
April 30, 1999 Through June 30, 2018

4/1999                                                                            9/2005                                                                             3/2012                                                                          6/2018

M
AR

K
ET

 V
A

LU
E 25,600,000

20,480,000

15,360,000

10,240,000

5,120,000

 Portfolio Market Value
 Beginning Market Value & Net Contributions

Dollars
Latest Quarter Since Inception

 Beginning Value 24,341,042 5,808,118 
 Net Contribution 0 3,563,854 
 Investment Return 45,633 15,014,704 
 Ending Value 24,386,676 24,386,676 

R
at

es
 o

f R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

15.00
10.00
5.00
0.00

-5.00

Latest Quarter Fiscal YTD Year To Date One Year Three Years Five Years Eight Years Since Inception
 TOTAL FUND Gross Time Weighted Return 0.30 8.58 0.24 8.58 7.22 8.33 9.29 6.33
 TOTAL FUND Net Time Weighted Return 0.18 8.11 0.09 8.11 6.61 7.64 8.56 5.69
 Composite Benchmark 0.77 8.50 -0.18 8.50 6.96 7.83 8.98 5.82
 S&P 500 Index 3.43 14.37 2.65 14.37 11.93 13.42 15.28 5.78
 MSCI ACWI x US -2.39 7.79 -3.44 7.79 5.56 6.48 7.22 5.07
 MSCI Net EM -7.96 8.20 -6.66 8.20 5.60 5.01 4.40 8.08
 BB Int Gov/Cr 0.01 -0.58 -0.97 -0.58 1.16 1.60 2.17 4.23

CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION - LONG-TERM POOL SUMMARY
FOR THE PERIOD 7/1/2017 THROUGH 6/30/2018

Asset Allocation Analysis Portfolio Growth
Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2018 Target Asset Allocation

* Strategy was transitioned from Barclays Intermediate Agg on 11/2014.

4 of 23          

60



Portfolio Returns
Incept. Current Latest Fiscal Year One Since Latest Fiscal Year One Since 
Date Allocation Quarter YTD To Date Year Inception Comparative Index Quarter YTD To Date Year Inception

Name

TOTAL FUND
ESG Trillium Lg Cap Core 05/19/16 10.2% 4.28 13.18 3.86 13.18 13.96 S&P 500 Index 3.43 14.37 2.65 14.37 15.57
ESG Gabelli 01/23/18 9.2% (1.38) - - - (8.72) S&P 500 Index 3.43 14.37 2.65 14.37 (2.91)
ESG Breckinridge Intm Fixed 05/19/16 29.6% 0.20 0.19 (1.33) 0.19 0.63 BB Int Gov/Cr 0.01 (0.58) (0.97) (0.58) 0.30
ESG Intl Funds 05/18/16 16.9% (4.78) 5.77 (3.30) 5.77 10.21 MSCI ACWI Ex-US* (2.61) 7.10 (3.77) 7.10 11.49
ESG Parametric ACWI 04/30/18 34.2% - - - - (3.14) MSCI ACWI ESG (1.11) 8.94 (2.28) 8.94 (2.67)

TOTAL FUND 05/18/16 100.0% (1.65) 3.41 (2.50) 3.41 6.10 Composite Benchmark (0.60) 4.87 (1.80) 4.87 7.24

EQUITY 36.51%
CASH & EQUIVALENTS

0.99%

INTERNATIONAL
EQUITY 33.28%

FIXED INCOME 29.23%

EQUITY 35.00%

INTERNATIONAL
EQUITY 35.00%

FIXED INCOME 30.00%

Source of Portfolio Growth
May 18, 2016 Through June 30, 2018

5/2016      12/2016        9/2017        6/2018

M
AR

K
ET

 V
A

LU
E

800,000

640,000

480,000

320,000

 Portfolio Market Value
 Beginning Market Value & Net Contributions

Dollars
Latest Quarter Since Inception

 Beginning Value 639,114 198,742 
 Net Contribution 225,000 577,273 
 Investment Return -13,997 74,102 
 Ending Value 850,118 850,118 

R
at

es
 o

f R
et

ur
n 

(%
) 8.00

6.00

4.00

2.00

0.00

-2.00

-4.00
Latest Quarter Fiscal YTD Year To Date One Year Since Inception

 TOTAL FUND Gross Time Weighted Return -1.65 3.41 -2.50 3.41 6.10
 TOTAL FUND Net Time Weighted Return -1.74 3.04 -2.60 3.04 5.66
 Composite Benchmark -0.60 4.87 -1.80 4.87 7.24

CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION - ESG LONG-TERM POOL SUMMARY
FOR THE PERIOD 7/1/2017 THROUGH 6/30/2018

Asset Allocation Analysis Portfolio Growth
Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2018 Target Asset Allocation

*Benchmark transitioned from MSCI ACWI ESG on 01/2018

5 of 23          

61



Portfolio Returns
Incept. Current Latest Fiscal Year One Three Five Eight Since Latest Fiscal Year One Three Five Eight Since 
Date Allocation Quarter YTDTo Date Year Years Years Years Incep Comparative Index Quarter YTDTo Date Year Years Years Years Incep

Name

TOTAL FUND
Parametric R3000 04/26/99 27.7% 6.81 3.27 6.66 16.56 12.06 12.67 14.54 6.61 Russell 3000 6.93 3.32 6.64 16.39 12.18 12.83 14.77 6.43
MLP 04/30/18 5.3% 8.46 5.05 - - - - - 8.46 Alerian MLP Index 10.24 6.58 5.91 0.41 (2.85) (2.77) 4.52 10.24
Breckinridge Intm Fixed 05/31/06 19.6% 0.60 0.03 (0.72) (0.43) 1.43 2.20 2.66 4.90 Barclays Int Gov/Cr * 0.56 0.03 (0.95) (1.01) 1.04 1.72 2.10 3.76
Putnam Short Duration 04/30/18 5.0% 0.36 0.19 - - - - - 0.36 FTSE 1 Mo TBill 0.44 0.15 0.92 1.35 0.65 0.40 0.27 0.44
Brandes Intl 04/30/99 12.4% (1.77) 3.57 3.50 7.12 4.82 6.87 7.04 6.70 MSCI Net EAFE (1.07) 2.46 (0.36) 6.40 5.03 5.86 6.89 4.15
Hansberger Intl 01/31/05 5.0% (0.67) 2.38 1.07 11.88 9.35 9.31 8.36 7.26 MSCI ACWI x US (1.85) 2.39 (1.47) 5.94 6.00 5.58 5.90 5.55
Brandes Global MidCap 12/22/08 0.5% 0.34 0.57 (2.97) (2.66) 7.51 7.87 11.32 16.43 MSCI SC World 3.70 1.23 4.22 14.10 11.23 10.94 12.69 15.30
Accuvest Intl 11/30/11 4.9% (4.11) 1.04 (3.64) 2.61 3.54 4.81 - 5.68 MSCI ACWI x US (1.85) 2.39 (1.47) 5.94 6.00 5.58 5.90 7.12
Intl Small Cap 10/24/16 9.7% (3.69) 0.04 (2.77) 4.00 - - - 12.59 SP Developed ExUS SC (1.88) 0.65 (1.38) 8.44 9.60 9.56 9.96 16.50
Liquid Alternatives 04/30/13 9.9% (0.09) 0.99 (0.67) 1.56 2.91 2.18 - 1.76 HFRX Global Hedge (0.07) (0.15) (1.00) 1.38 0.79 1.08 1.10 1.11

TOTAL FUND 04/30/99 100.0% 1.53 1.88 2.12 8.32 7.68 7.85 8.80 6.41 Composite Benchmark 1.90 1.86 1.67 8.27 7.44 7.44 8.55 5.90

FIXED INCOME 19.49%

CASH & EQUIVALENTS 6.74%

INTERNATIONAL
EQUITY 31.04%

ALTERNATIVE
INVESTMENTS 9.82% EQUITY 32.91%

FIXED INCOME 20.00%

CASH & EQUIVALENTS 5.00%

INTERNATIONAL
EQUITY 32.50%

ALTERNATIVE
INVESTMENTS 10.00% EQUITY 32.50%

Source of Portfolio Growth
April 30, 1999 Through July 31, 2018

4/1999                                                                            9/2005                                                                             3/2012                                                                           7/2018

M
AR

K
ET

 V
A

LU
E 25,600,000

20,480,000

15,360,000

10,240,000

5,120,000

 Portfolio Market Value
 Beginning Market Value & Net Contributions

Dollars
Latest Quarter Since Inception

 Beginning Value 24,476,645 5,808,118 
 Net Contribution 505,610 4,069,464 
 Investment Return 344,164 15,448,838 
 Ending Value 25,326,419 25,326,419 

R
at

es
 o

f R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

15.00
10.00
5.00
0.00

-5.00

Latest Quarter Fiscal YTD Year To Date One Year Three Years Five Years Eight Years Since Inception
 TOTAL FUND Gross Time Weighted Return 1.53 1.88 2.12 8.32 7.68 7.85 8.80 6.41
 TOTAL FUND Net Time Weighted Return 1.37 1.75 1.84 7.90 7.09 7.17 8.08 5.76
 Composite Benchmark 1.90 1.86 1.67 8.27 7.44 7.44 8.55 5.90
 S&P 500 Index 6.87 3.72 6.47 16.24 12.52 13.12 14.83 5.96
 MSCI ACWI x US -1.68 2.42 -1.11 6.45 6.50 6.07 6.39 5.18
 MSCI Net EM -5.52 2.20 -4.61 4.36 8.94 5.25 3.64 8.16
 BB Int Gov/Cr 0.56 0.03 -0.95 -1.01 1.04 1.54 2.04 4.22

CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION - LONG-TERM POOL SUMMARY
FOR THE PERIOD 7/1/2018 THROUGH 7/31/2018

Asset Allocation Analysis Portfolio Growth
Asset Allocation as of July 31, 2018 Target Asset Allocation

* Strategy was transitioned from Barclays Intermediate Agg on 11/2014.

4 of 23          

62



Portfolio Returns
Incept. Current Latest Fiscal Year One Since Latest Fiscal Year One Since 
Date Allocation Quarter YTD To Date Year Inception Comparative Index Quarter YTD To Date Year Inception

Name

TOTAL FUND
ESG Trillium Lg Cap Core 05/19/16 10.4% 7.04 4.20 8.23 15.75 15.57 S&P 500 Index 6.87 3.72 6.47 16.24 16.89
ESG Gabelli 01/23/18 9.3% 4.85 3.83 - - (5.22) S&P 500 Index 6.87 3.72 6.47 16.24 0.70
ESG Breckinridge Intm Fixed 05/19/16 29.0% 0.70 0.10 (1.23) (0.16) 0.65 BB Int Gov/Cr 0.56 0.03 (0.95) (1.01) 0.30
ESG Intl Funds 05/18/16 16.8% (2.23) 1.81 (1.55) 5.26 10.71 MSCI ACWI Ex-US* (1.85) 2.39 (1.47) 6.50 12.24
ESG Parametric ACWI 04/30/18 34.6% 0.21 3.45 - - 0.21 MSCI ACWI ESG 0.56 3.32 0.96 8.55 0.56

TOTAL FUND 05/18/16 100.0% 1.01 2.29 (0.26) 4.27 6.97 Composite Benchmark 1.32 2.27 0.42 5.40 8.06

EQUITY 37.10%
CASH & EQUIVALENTS

1.05%

INTERNATIONAL
EQUITY 33.28%

FIXED INCOME 28.57%

EQUITY 35.00%

INTERNATIONAL
EQUITY 35.00%

FIXED INCOME 30.00%

Source of Portfolio Growth
May 18, 2016 Through July 31, 2018

5/2016         3/2017        12/2017      7/2018

M
AR

K
ET

 V
A

LU
E

800,000

640,000
480,000

320,000

 Portfolio Market Value
 Beginning Market Value & Net Contributions

Dollars
Latest Quarter Since Inception

 Beginning Value 861,250 198,742 
 Net Contribution 0 577,274 
 Investment Return 7,585 92,819 
 Ending Value 868,835 868,835 

R
at

es
 o

f R
et

ur
n 

(%
) 8.00

6.00

4.00

2.00

0.00

Latest Quarter Fiscal YTD Year To Date One Year Since Inception
 TOTAL FUND Gross Time Weighted Return 1.01 2.29 -0.26 4.27 6.97
 TOTAL FUND Net Time Weighted Return 0.88 2.20 -0.46 3.93 6.50
 Composite Benchmark 1.32 2.27 0.42 5.40 8.06

CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION - ESG LONG-TERM POOL SUMMARY
FOR THE PERIOD 7/1/2018 THROUGH 7/31/2018

Asset Allocation Analysis Portfolio Growth
Asset Allocation as of July 31, 2018 Target Asset Allocation

*Benchmark transitioned from MSCI ACWI ESG on 01/2018

5 of 23          

63



Total Net Assets highest level was $33,780,296 as of January 31, 2018

Endowed Net Assets highest level was $30,269,973 as of January 31, 2018

Endowed Historical Gifts highest level was $22,906,507 as of June 30, 2018

Total Net Assets

$32,956,550

Endowed  

Net Assets

$29,252,289

Endowed 

Historical Gifts

$22,906,507

$5,000,000

$7,500,000

$10,000,000

$12,500,000

$15,000,000

$17,500,000

$20,000,000

$22,500,000

$25,000,000

$27,500,000

$30,000,000

$32,500,000

$35,000,000

6/30/00 6/30/01 6/30/02 6/30/03 6/30/04 6/30/05 6/30/06 6/30/07 6/30/08 6/30/09 6/30/10 6/30/11 6/30/12 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/15 6/30/16 6/30/17 6/30/18

Cabrillo College Foundation

Total Net Assets, Endowed Net Assets, and Endowed Historical Gifts

June 30, 2000 to June 30, 2018

Total Net Assets Endowed Net Assets Endowed Historical Gifts

O:\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2018-19 Agendas\2018 09 11\Net Assets Report By Year 2000-2018.xlsx
64



 

 

 

 

65



 

66



 

67



 

68



CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

PRESIDENT'S CIRCLE HISTORY REPORT 

Updated 9/4/2018

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Committee Chair Ceil Cirillo

Jess Brown

& Ted Burke

Ted Burke

& Linda

Burroughs

Diane Craddock 

& Linda 

Burroughs

Diane Craddock 

& Owen Brown

Claire 

Biancalana & 

Owen Brown

Claire 

Biancalana & 

Mahlon Foote

Mahlon Foote 

& Ceil Cirillo

# of Committee Members 35 37 37 36 29 36 33 37

# of Annual Members

($1,000+ ) 169 176 192 190 189 206 214 227

# of Annual Members solicited for 

the first time through Annual Fund 

($1,000+ ) 6 3 2 1 1 2 3 2

# of New Annual Members ($1,000+ 

) 23 26 30 20 16 23 19 32

# of Rejoining Annual Members 

($1,000+ ) 146 150 162 170 179 183 192 195

% of Rejoining Members 88% 88% 92% 88% 94% 97% 93% 91%

# of $15,000+ 1 1

# of $10,000+ 0 0 0 2 3 3 2 3

# of $5,000-$9,999 8 8 10 7 7 8 7 9

# of $2,500-$4,999 17 16 13 13 13 14 15 23

# of $1,500-$2,499

(Starting 2011-2012)* n/a 37 38 45 52 54 56 59

# of $1,001-$1,499 (Prior to 2011-12 

included up to $2,499) 6 3 5 4 2 5

# of $1,000 Donations 138 112 126 119 114 127 133 132

# of Donors Who Gave < $1,000 8 8 9 7 8 9 8 3

# of Prospects Solicited 1,137 1,168 1,085 1,063 1,011 1,045 1,041 1,031

Donations from Annual Fund $7,500 $3,000 $3,500 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $3,000 $2,000

Operational Budget Goal $218,000 $225,000 $250,000 $280,000 $285,000 $317,000 $318,000 $332,000

Total Funds Raised $225,095 $250,616 $271,652 $282,774 $311,406 $318,074 $330,908 $377,795
Percent Increase/ Decrease Over 

Previous Year 3% 11% 8% 4% 10% 2% 4% 14%

69



 

 

 

70



 

 

71



 

 

72



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

73



 

 

 

 

74



 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75

mailto:namachad@cabrillo.edu
mailto:namachad@cabrillo.edu


76



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77



 

O:\Foundation\Committees\Board of Directors\Agendas for Meetings\2018-19 Agendas\2018 09 11\Banking 

Services Selection Timeline and Process 08-08-18.docx 

 

78



 

 

79



 

 

Cabrillo College Foundation 

Brown Act and Public Participation at Meetings Policy  

August 24, 2016 
 

The Brown Act provides opportunities for members of the general public to observe and comment on 

the public business of the CCF that is conducted by the Board of CCF or its standing committees, as 

required by the Brown Act. The Board of Directors and the Executive, Finance, and Audit committees 

are considered Brown Act bodies.  

 

Opportunity for public comment at meetings: 

There will be opportunities at each regular meeting for the general public to comment on items on the 

agenda and items not on the agenda that are within the purview of the CCF. No action may be taken on 

non-agenda items. 

 

Public comment at special meetings is limited to items on the agenda. 

 

Unless otherwise determined by the Chair, a member of the public is limited to three minutes when 

addressing the CCF Board of Directors and committees which are Brown Act bodies.  

 

General rules regarding meetings: 

 A regular meeting must be noticed by an agenda posted at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
The agenda must be publicly accessible 24 hours per day. Internet posting of the agenda is also 
required if the entity has a web site. 

 
 A special meeting must be noticed by an agenda posted at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  

No items can be added to a special meeting agenda. Notice must be given to news organizations who 
have requested such notice. 

 
 An emergency meeting must be specially noticed. Only “emergencies” as defined in the Brown Act 

are subject to this provision. 

 
Closed sessions are permitted under a narrow set of circumstances.  They must be noticed as a closed 
session on the agenda, and any final “action taken” must be reported out to the public. Closed sessions 
are permitted for: 
 

1.Personnel matters  (discipline, dismissal, evaluations, and other confidential employee matters) 

2.Pending litigation  (this includes actual litigation and threatened litigation) 

3.Real estate negotiations 

4.Labor negotiations (this includes salary negotiations) 

5.Threat to public facilities or services 

 
 Public records/writings distributed to board members less than 72 hours before a regular meeting 

must be made available to the public at the time of distribution to the board. Such public records will 
be available at the CCF office or other location described on the agenda. 

 
 Brown Act bodies are prohibited from taking action on items not appearing on the posted agenda.  

There are, however, exceptions. For example, if the body, at a regular meeting, makes findings to 
add the item to the agenda:  By a 2/3 vote or, if less than 2/3 of the body are present, by a unanimous 
vote, that action needs to be taken immediately and the need to take action occurred after posting the 
agenda for a regular meeting. 

80



81



Nancy Machado
Accounting and Human 
Resources  Manager
x5032

Eileen Hill
Executive Director
x6458

Kate Staveland
Operations and Communications 
Director 
x6597

Cabrillo College Foundation Staff

Caitlin Bonura
Development Officer
x6124

Alia Fintz
Foundation Assistant

x6104

Lori  Hood
Events Coordinator
Executive Assistant

x6390

Gabe Cortez
Development Assistant

x6338

Georgia West
Accounting and Human     
Resources Specialist

x6164

Shannon Moseley    
Accounting Specialist

x6349

82



 

 

83



   

 

84




